# **Yolo County Health Council**

April 11, 2019 Minutes

MICHAEL WILKES, MD, CHAIR ELIZABETH MUNGUIA, VICE-CHAIR

## YOLO COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY

GONZALEZ BUILDING, COMMUNITY ROOM 25 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET, WOODLAND, CA 95695 The Yolo County Health Council and the Yolo County Commission on Aging and Adult Services met in a joint meeting on the 11<sup>th</sup> Day of April 2019, in the Community Room at the Gonzalez Building at 25 North Cottonwood Street, Woodland, CA at 9:00 a.m.

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT: Michael Wilkes, District 2; Linda Deos, District 4; Valerie Olson, District 5; John Tan, At-Large Member;

Elizabeth Abbott, At-Large Member; Dawn Myers, Commission on Aging & Adult Services; Lori Duisenberg, First 5 Yolo; Kathleen Middings, MCAH Advisory Board; Evan Priestley, CommuniCare Health Centers; Mark Ho, Kaiser Permanente; Chester Austin, Northern Valley Indian Health; Craig Blomberg, Sutter Health; Stacey McCall, Winters Health Care

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT: Elizabeth Munguia, District 1; Carri Ziegler, District 3; Scott Hatcher, EMCC; Jeneba Lahai, Yolo County Children's Alliance;

Nicki King, Local Mental Health Board; Meredith Wurden, Partnership Healthplan of California;

Tandy Burton, Woodland Health Care

STAFF & GUESTS PRESENT: Sheila Allen, Commission on Aging and Adult Services; Ron Chapman, Health Officer, HHSA;

Jill Cook, County Administrator's Office; Terry Kelley, Commission on Aging and Adult Services; Laurie Haas, Commission on Aging and Adult Services; Lupita Torres, Public; Pat Moore-Pickett, Public; Mary Ann Limbos, Deputy Health Officer, HHSA; Margot Loschke, Commission on Aging and Adult Services; Supervisor Don Saylor, District 2; Cyndi Sechler, Secretary, HHSA; Brian Vaughn, Public Health Director, HHSA;

Tia Will, Public; Siv Winberg, Commission on Aging and Adult Services

## 9:00 A.M. CALL TO ORDER

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS – Michael Wilkes, Health Council Chair

The April 11, 2019 joint Health Council and Commission on Aging and Adult Services meeting was called to order at 9:01 a.m., at which time around the table introductions occurred and quorum was not confirmed.

2. Consider Approval of Agenda – Michael Wilkes, Health Council Chair

Michael Wilkes asked to amend agenda item number 10 to read Yolo County Commission on Aging and Adult Services.

Motion: Linda Deos Second: Valerie Olson Discussion: None Vote: Unanimous

3. APPROVE THE March 14, 2019 Minutes – Michael Wilkes, Health Council Chair

Elizabeth Abbott asked to amend the March 14<sup>th</sup> minutes to reflect the discussion and update regarding the ORR site visit.

The Chair asked for a motion to accept the March 14, 2019 minutes to include the discussion regarding the ORR update and site visit.

Motion: Chester Austin Second: Stacey McCall Discussion: None Vote: Unanimous

#### 4. PUBLIC COMMENT

- Michael Wilkes announced the Health Council has a member vacancy for an At-Large position.
- Sheila Allen announced Agency on Aging, Area 4, mailed out a survey on information about aging in the communities. The survey will close at the end of April.
- Michael Wilkes shared information about Candida auris, which is a drug resistant fungus that causes death.
- Lupita Torres is with Davis People Power, and shared a situation between two representatives from Mental Health Continuum and the Police Oversite Committee.
- 5. HEALTH OFFICER REPORT Ron Chapman, Health Officer
  - Accreditation: State Health Departments from across California are coming to Woodland today for an all-day event to learn about Public Health Accreditation. There are about a 12 out of 58 departments in the state that are nationally accredited, and Yolo County is one of them.

- **Preventive Medicine Resident**: Dr. Alanna Bares has accepted our invitation to train with us for the next two-years for her preventive medicine residency program. Dr. Bares is a Board-Certified Pediatrician and will complete her Master's in Public Health at the end of June. We are very fortunate to have her start working with us in July.
- **Syphilis:** Our number of cases continue to increase, fortunately no congenital Syphilis at this point. Yolo County did apply for the grant and waiting to hear back from the CMSP Board.
- Measles: No active cases in Yolo County. We are getting questions from all the provider healthcare systems about what to do and how to educate people. We have been partnering closely with all the school districts; and we put together a letter for the schools to send out to all the parents and caregivers explaining what Measles are and encouraging people to get vaccinated. There have been some cases in California with three cases in Placer County. Nationwide, the number of cases is the second highest number of cases nationwide since Measles was eradicated in the United States.
- Oral Health Advisory Committee: The committee met on Monday and discussed how to engage primary
  care in oral health strategies when it comes to fluoride varnish. As a highlight, one of Advisory Committee
  members, a private practice dentist, worked with us to get into the Davis Joint Unified School District, and
  worked with the school nurses to get Oral Health curriculum into the elementary schools. About 800
  children have received the education and training.

## 6. STATE AND COUNTY UPDATE - Jill Cook, County Administrator's Office

- AB 85: The Governor has proposed to modify AB 85, which the proposal will retain all the public health
  realignment funding from County Medical Services Program (CMSP), who serves the 35 smaller counties in
  California. Patrick Blacklock, County Administrator and CMSP governing board member, is taking the lead and
  meeting on behalf of CMSP with the department of finance at the state; and advocating for CMSP and why
  they need to retain some of their money and try to negotiate what CMSP can do in this new era.
- **Strategic Plan Workshop:** On April 16<sup>th</sup> the Board of Supervisors will have their 2<sup>nd</sup> strategic plan workshop covering a variety of topics. Brian Vaughn will be presenting on Health Equity and Health in All Policies. We will also be hearing presentations on children and the topic of aging.

#### 7. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS UPDATE – Supervisor Don Saylor, District 2

- Strategic Plan Update: The Board has completed one phase in March which included broad public input, with almost 500 individuals that interacted with the surveys or personal conversations with county staff. By December 2019, the plan is to put in place the strategic plan for the next 3-5 years.
- AB 626: Was enacted by the legislature last year and went into effect January 1, 2019. AB 626, or Microenterprise Home Kitchen Operations (MEHKO), is a new type of retail food facility that will allow an individual to operate a restaurant in their private residence. This bill was opposed by the California State Association of Counties, Environmental Health Officers Association statewide, and most counties including Yolo County due to the fact there is very little ability for county environmental health officers to provide assurance to the public that food is being prepared safely. The bill passed with one provision, that individual counties can choose to opt in.
- 10-year Census: In 2020 it will be the 10-year census. Encourage everyone to take a look at Yolo County's Facebook page and website to see how we are participating in the outreach for preparation for the 2020 Census.
- Food Bank: The Food Bank has moved into their new building. The grand opening will be coming soon.
- **Farmer Veteran Coalition:** Yolo County is home to the national Farmer Veteran Coalition, and they just celebrated their 10-years of operation. They have served 14,000 veterans over the 10-year period.

- Shaping California: On May 22<sup>nd</sup> there will be a free public forum: "Shape California's Future: 2020 Citizens Redistricting". It will be hosted by Saving California Communities, and held at the Veteran's Memorial Center in Davis.
- 8. COMMUNITY HEALTH BRANCH REPORT Brian Vaughn, Public Health Director Branch Report
  - Emergency Medical Services (EMS): This May will be the First Annual EMS recognition awards. Each year, many individuals contribute and perform notable acts within the EMS system. These acts include service through leadership, participation in system development, system improvement, and through exceptional performance of prehospital care. The community, EMS providers, supervisors, and managers are encouraged to nominate individuals for outstanding acts of service or performance.
  - Women, Infants and Children (WIC): Starting in mid-August WIC will switch from WIC vouchers to WIC cards.
     Each family will receive one WIC Card for all of their family's food benefits. The new card and new computer system will be rolled out throughout California in waves, beginning with a pilot period in Napa and Solano Counties starting in May 2019. Yolo County will "Go Live" on September 23, 2019.
  - **Davis Chamber of Commerce:** On April 9<sup>th</sup> Dr. Chapman and Brian were invited give a Health in All Policies presentation to the Davis City Council. The Council was very receptive to the recommendations.
  - AB 85: Public Health Realignment is our single biggest source of non-categorical funding. Most of the state
    and federal funding that we receive in Public Health is very categorical specific for what it does, and does not
    allow a lot of wiggle room for us to invest in the upstream and Health Equity and prevention, accept in those
    narrow categories. In smaller counties Public Health Realignment helps fill holes in some programs like WIC,
    Public Health Labs, Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health Programs, Child Disability Programs, and it is spread
    out to help with administrative costs.
  - **Flu:** A second virus is going around that prolonged the Flu season. The first virus happened around December and January, and the second virus should be ending now. There was a death of a UC Davis student as a result of the Flu, which was tragic event and Public Health is following up on it. Just a reminder that we need to take the Flu very seriously and everyone should get vaccinated every year.
- 9. NOMINATION COMMITTEE FOR CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR Brian Vaughn, Public Health Director

Brian Vaughn asked for three members to volunteer for the Nomination Committee. Volunteers included:

- Elizabeth Abbott, At-Large Member
- Carrie Ziegler, District 3
- Stacey McCall, Winters Health Care

## **PRESENTATIONS**

- 10. Invited Guests, Yolo County Commission on Aging and Adult Services Members
  - A. Adult Day Health Center Update Dawn Myers and Jill Cook

PowerPoint: Adult Day Health Center Update

- Some of the items covered included:
  - History
  - Collaborative Structure
  - Adult Day Health Model
  - About the Program who they serve and what they offer

- B. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS EVACUATION OF AT-RISK POPULATIONS Sheila Allen, Commission on Aging & Adult Services Staff
  - Some of the items covered included:
    - Registry for older adults that would need assistance
    - Yoloalert.org in an event of an emergency
    - The City of Woodland's Special Need Assistance Program (SNAP)
- C. HEALTHY YOLO UPDATE Brian Vaughn, Public Health Director

PowerPoint: Healthy Yolo

- Some of the items covered included:
  - What Determines Our Health?
  - How Can We Influence Health?
  - Healthy Yolo CHIP Priority Areas
  - Accomplishments

## **ANNOUNCEMENTS**

## 11. REPRESENTATIVE REPORT OUT & ANNOUNCEMENTS

No report outs.

## **ADJOURNMENT**

## 12. Next Meeting – May 9, 2019

#### Proposed items for future meetings:

- o 2-1-1 May
- Health Equity May
- o Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) June
- o Oral Health July
- o Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
- o Older Populations and STDs
- o Refugee Mental Health
- o Homeless Health
- Whole Child Model
- Workforce Group
- o Public restrooms
- Yolo Food Bank Tour
- 13. Motion for Adjournment Michael Wilkes, Health Council Chair

Motion: Kathleen Middings Second: Elizabeth Abbott Discussion: None Vote: Unanimous

The meeting was adjourned at 11:01 a.m.

Respectfully submitted by:

- Sechler

Cyndi Sechler, Secretary Yolo County Health Council